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Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Durectors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Directors’' Report
The directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Principal activities

The principal acuvity of the Company 1s that of an investment holding company

The principal activities of the Group are air and rail transportatton, hohdays, mobile telecommunicauions and healthcare
Business review

The Group and Company have net current hiabilities However, the ultmate parent undertaking, Virgin Group Holdings
Limited, has formally indicated that 1t 1s 1ts present intention to provide sufficient funding to the Company to enable the
Group and Company to mect their habilities as they fall due, for at least the next twelve months The directors have no
reason to believe that the parent company will not be in a position to provide this support

Having regard for the principal nisks and uncertainties set out i this repoert, which could mmpact the Group’s businesses,
the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue tn operational existence for
the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial
staternents of the Group and the Company

Given the diverse nature of the Group’s activiuies, the review focuses individually on the principal businesses consolidated
or equity accounted for in these financial statements

Air Travel and Holidays

Virgin Atlantic Limited and 1its subsidiary comparies ( Virgin Atlantic™} 1s the principal arrline and hohidays business
consohidated n these financial statements

The 2012/13 financial pertormance reflects a continuation of the challenging trading conditions seen in the previous year
The macro economy, 1n the UK and Europe in particular, was weak and fuel prices remamed persistently high In these
conditions, Virgin Atlantic returned a loss after tax of £43mullion (2012 loss £39m:llion), even though turnover increased
by 5% to £2 9billion The Group’s share of this 15 a loss of £22muilion (2012 loss of £20million)

Virgin Atlantic's management focus conttnued to be on driving fuel efficiency, continuing to develop the retail distribution
channel in Virgin Hohdays and tight cost control across all operational and administrative areas where such control can be
exerted At the same time however, Virgin Atlantic has continued to make significant investment 1n the core product and
service offering where those investments support future revenue growth A major capital programme to refurbish the
leisure B747-400 {leet was completed during the year, a number of more fuel effictent A330-300 aircraft were introduced
to the operauional fleet and the number of Holidays’ retail outlets grew to 104 The benefits of these investments 1s already
clear in customer satisfaction ratings, revenue generation tn the peniod and the growth in bookings for trave! in future
periods

The outlook for 2013/14 1s wmproving Holiday sales are up 6%, revenue and passenger growth has been strengthening
during the second half of 2012/13 and in combination with the start of the Virgin Atlantic domestic service Little Red and
the anucipated approval of the recently announced strategic alliance with Delta Awr Lines, Virgin Atlantic's management
enter 2013/14 confident that the financial performance of Virgm Atlantic will improve considerably

Virgin Atlantic's management remawn focused on controlling unit cost performance across the addressable cost base,
prioritising capital investment to those areas which will drive greatest revenue benefit and leveraging the endunng strength
of the Virgin brand in returning Virgin Atlantic to profitability
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Business Review (continued)
Aw Travel and Holidays {continued)

The directors contunue to monitor Virgin Atlanuc’s success, or otherwise, using a range of key performance indicators
(" KPIs™) A selection of these key measures 1s shown below

2013 2012
Virgin Atlantic Group turnover £2 874milhon  £2_.745million
Return on sales (1 (2.4%) (2 9%)
Cash at bank and 11 hand 1) £412mullton £487muillion

) Return on sales - ([.oss)/profit on ordimary activities before taxation as a percentage of turnover
2+Cash at bank and 1n hand - Cash at bank and in hand ncludes beth cash and hquid resources

Reaul

Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited and 1ts subsidiary companies ("Virgin Rail™) operates passenger rail services between
London (Euston) and Birmingham Woelverhampton, Holyhead, Chester, Liverpool, Manchester, Preston, Carlisle and
Glasgow under the franchise operated by West Coast Trains Limuited (“West Coast™) The profit for the financial yvear,
alter taxation and minonty interests, amounted to £26million (2012 £29million) The Group's share of this (s a profit of
£13mullion (2012 £15mullion)

Virgin Ratl operates 1ts services under the terms of an onginal franchise agreement dated 19 February 1997, amended by
the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement ("ARFA™). which was entered into on 9 December 2006 Under this
agreement, the West Coast tranchise was due to run untl 31 March 2012 However the start of the new West Coast
franchise was delayed by the Department for Transport {("DfT™) until 9 December 2012 On 26 October 2011, an
extension of the existing franchise from 1 April 2012 to 8 December 2012 was agreed between the DT and Virgin Rail

A bid process for the new West Coast franchise, due to start on 9 December 2012, took place during 2012 Virgin Rail
submutted 1ts bid on 2 May 2012 On 15 August 2012 1t was announced that the new franchise had been awarded to First
Group ple Following a legal challenge by Virgin Rail. on 3 October 2012, the Secretary of State for Transport announced
that the competition to run the new franchise had been cancelled after the discovery, by the DIT, of sigmificant technical
flaws in the way the franchise process was conducted

Virgin Rail entered into negotiations with the DfT in relation to the future operation of services on the West Coast Main
Line On 5 December 2012, an Intenm Franchise Agreement was signed between Virgin Rait and the DIT for the
operaticn of services from 9 December 2012 to 8 November 2014 The Intenm Franchise Agreement imtially operates as
a management contract, with both revenue and cost nisk being borne by the DfT In return Virgin Rail receives a margin of
1% on revenue The Intenm Franchise Agrecment makes provision for the DfT and the Group 1o agree revised commercial
terms that would see Virgin Rail taking on greater revenue and cost risk wn the period 10 8 November 2014 1n return for a
commercial margin

On 26 March 2013 the DfT announced a programme for letting future franchises, with the long-term West Coast franchise
expected to start in Apnit 2017 Virgin Rail 15 in discussion with the DFT in relation to the operation of services for the
irterim penod from 9 November 2014 to Apnil 2017

Virgin Ratl manages the DT contract for the introduction of 62 additional camages and 4 new trains to the Pendolino
fleet of the West Coast franchise Under the terms of the agreement, the DIY ordered the trains and Virgin Rail 1s
providing support throughout the design, manufacture. delivery, testing and commissioning of the new vehicles The
project was completed in December 2012 when all of the new trains and carniages had entered tnto service

Despite the current economic conditions, Virgin Rail has seen strong passenger revenue growth during the fihancial
penod
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Business review (continued)
Rail (continued)

Virgin Rail 15 focused on continually improving its customer service and satisfaction levels The selection, training and
encouragement of staff conunues to reflect this, while management s continually reviewing operations to provide the best
value for money service to customers

Virgin Rail continues to experience days of significant poor infrastructure performance by Network Rail, despite the
improving trend when looking at the Public Performance Measure (“PPM™ being the percentage of trains that arrive at
their destination within 10 minutes of their scheduted arrival ume having called at all scheduled stations) Virgin Rail
continues to press for improvements from Network Rail’s performance contract to ensure that the effects of the poor
performance days are mmmimised Despite this, customer satisfaction as measured by the independent National Passenger
Survey has been trending upwards and Virgin Rail has been at the tep of long distance train operators, in terms of overall
satisfaction scores, for the last seven bi-annual surveys

Dunng the financial period the introduction of 106 new Pendoline carmiages has successfully been completed The new
carriages will mean that up to 28,000 extra seats per day can be provided

Virgin Rail uses a range of financial and non-financial key performance indicators (“KPIs’) across its activities Financial
KPIs tocus on profitability and cash management Revenuc s a key driver of profitability levels and the result of improved
Journey umes and comfort has contributed to an increase 1n passenger jourmneys year on year

Mobile telecoms

The Group holds an interest in Omer Telecom Limited { ‘Omer™), a jownt venture mobite operator which distnibutes Virgin,
Tele2, Casino and Breizh mobile products and services tn France Omer s principal income streams are mobile service
revenues generated from its customers and revenue on the sale of mobile equipment The loss for the financial year, afier
taxation, amounted to £3million (2012 profit of £4million) The Group's share of this 1s a loss of £1million (2012 profit
of £2mitlion} The customer base at 31 March 2013 was 1 7Tmullion (2012 1 9million)  The Group s share of turnover for
the year was £21 1million (2012 £216milhon)

Healthcare

Virgin Healthcare Holdings Limited and uts subsidiary companies ("Virgin Care”) 15 an innovative provider of NHS
services across England Virgin Care provides a range of NHS community services including community hospitals, district
nursing sexual health and prison health as well as GP-led walk-in and healthcare centres, urgent care centres, out ot hours
services, commumty diagnostics and GP pracuices Virgin Care works with a wide range of NHS, independent and third
seclor partners to deliver NHS services, employing nurses, GP's, consultants and other clinical and admuinstrauve staff

On 1 Apnl 2012, Virgin Care went live with a contract to provide Surrey Community Health services, with revenue of
approxiamately £100million per annum This includes the provision of NHS primary care services, specifically community
services across north-west and south-west Surrey, as well as some county-wide services including sexual and prison health,
n a contract worth £450mitlion over five years These services are primanly contracted by NHS Surrey for a pened of 5
years, but there are also important contracts with other local commusioners and providers [n addition, since 1 April 2013
Virgin Care has provided NEIS services under the Devon Children's contract Virgin Care's loss for the financial year, after
taxauon amounted to £8mullion (2012 £11milhon) The Group's share of this 1s a loss of £7mullion (2012 £9m:llion)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group faces a range of nsks and uncertainties Detalled below are those specific nsks and uncertainties that could
have the most significant impact on the Group’s long-term performance The risks and uncertainuies described below are
not intended to be exhaustive

Risks faced across the Group
Economic conditions

A prolonged economic downturn may result in revenue reduction and potentral reduction of profit for all businesses A
global economic slowdown may adversely aftect discretionary spending, particularly for leisure activities and travel In
order to mimimise this risk, there 15 a focus across all activities of the Group on cost control and efficient operation

Brand reputation

The strong reputation and loyalty engendered by the Group's brands 1s a core part of the value of the businesses Any
damage to the brands caused by any single event or series of events could matenially impact customer loyalty and the
propensity of customers to travel with Virgm, or purchase Virgin products and services, and so adversely affect our
business

Risks specific to Virgin Atlantic
Mayor incidents risk

As with any operator of public transportation. there 1s a risk that the Group’s airline (and rail) subsidiaries are invoived in
a major cident which could result in injury to customers or staff The potenual impact on the Group includes damage to
the Group’s reputation and possible claims against the Group The Group has a strong towus on 1ts safety environment. and
has procedures 1n place to prevent and respond to any major incident that may oceur

Gover nment intervention

The aviation, tour operating and rail indusines are highly regulated and any decisions made by the government with
respect to closure of arspace, slot regulation, security requirements, rail infrastructure government taxes and other levies
may result 1n a matenal adverse impact for Virgin Atlanuc and Virgin Raul from both an operational and financial
perspective

Risks specific to Virgin Raul
Franchise risk

The West Coast Intenim Franchise Agreement currently runs until 8 November 2014 On 26 March 2013 the DIT
announced a programme for letung future franchises, with the long-term West Coast franchise expected to start in Apnl
2017 Vargin Rail 1s in discussion with the DT in relanon to the operation of services lor the intenm pertod trom 9
November 2014 to April 2017 There 1s a nisk that agreement 1s not reached for the period beyond 8 November 2014 To
address this nisk, Virgin Rail 15 devoting appropriate management resource to the discussions with the DIT

The Intenm Franchise Agreement was negotiated using a range of assumptions with regard to revenue growth and cost
base Under the current 1% margin arrangements, this risk 1s mimimised If revised commercial terms are agreed that sce
Virgin Rail taking on greater revenue and cost risk, 1t 1s imperative that Virgin Rail takes all actions outlined in its bid to
ensure that 1ts targets are met

Virgin Rail 1s required to comply with certam conditions as part of its West Coast rail franchise agreement If 1t tails to
comply with these conditions, 1t may be liable to penalties or the potential termimnation of the franchise Compliance with
franchise conditons are closely managed and monitored and procedures are in place to mummise the nsk of
noncompliance
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Principal nisks and uncertainties {continued)

Risks specific to Vugin Rail (continued)

Ongoing Netwoi k Rail per for mance

Rehable runming of the high frequency West Coast timetable depends on the abihity of Network Rail to maintain a fully
operational network Failure to do so impacts Virgin Rail’s operational pertormance In order to manage the nisk, there 1s
clase monitoring by management of performance targets

Fatlure of criical suppliers

Virgin Rail has a number of key suppliers supporung varous areas of the business, for example infrastructure, rolling
stock and IT Failure of one of these key supphers, including Network Rail, would impact on the financial and operatianal
performance of Virgin Rail Virgin Rail has made contingency plans for each key supplier if this cventuality occurs

Rusks spectfic to Virgin Care

Business growth

Virgin Care s a fast-growing business As a result of 1ts success and expanston the directors ensure the business has the
resources and management processes tn place to mobilise more than one large contract at a time The directors are
satisfied such matters are properly discussed by the Virgin Care board and arc adequately tesourced

Government regulation

Recent changes in the healtheare sector including the recent "Health and Social Care Act 2012", present an opportuntty
for the business, however there remans a lack of clarity over how certain measures contained within the Act will be
implemented

Financial nsk management

T'he Board of Directors 1s responsible for setung financial nsk management policy and abjectives, and approves the
parameters within which the vanous aspects of financial risk management are operated.

Financing and interest rate 115k

The working caputal of Virgin Atlanuc s financed by retained profit and sales in advance of carmage The major risks to
liquidity are driven by business performance and cash uming differences for Virgin Atlantic s dervative financial
instruments The former 1s managed by taking correcuve actions in the form of amendments to fleet, network and the cost
base in response to changing external factors, and the latter as described in the denivative financial instruments policy

All of Virgin Atlantic s debt 1s asset related, reflecting the capital intensive nature of the airhne industry and the
attractiveness of areraft as secunty to lenders and other financiers These factors are also reflected in the medwum-ierm
profile of Virgin Atlantic s loans and operating leases

Virgin Atlantic interest rate management policy aims to provide a degree of certainty for future financing costs, this s
achieved by funding the majonty of loans and operating feases on a fixed interest rate basis Virgin Atlantie’s loans and
operating leases are principally denominated 1n US dollars

Virgin Rail policy 1s to invest cash assets safely and protitably To control credit nisk, counterparty credit limits are set by
reference to published credit ratings In addition, Virgin Rail seeks to maximise financial income from short term deposits
via the monitoring of cash balances and working capital requirements
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Financial risk management (continued)
Financing and mtetest 1ate 1isk (continued)

Omer's principal financial assets are cash and trade debtors A provision for doubtful debt 1s made where, based on
previous experetence, the full trade debtor may not be recovered Credut nisk on cash s limited as counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings To controf interest rate risk, cash balances and loans are at floating interest rates Omer does not
use dervatives to manage 1ts financial risks

Foreign currency risk

Virgin Adantic has a significant net US dollar cost exposure Capital, lease and a number ot operational costs, most
sigmificantly aviation fuel, are denominated in US dollars [n additon Virgin Atlantic 1s exposed to a number of other
currencies Virgin Atlantic seeks to reduce 1ts foreign exchange exposure arising n various currencies through matching,
as far as possible, receipts and payments in individual currencies To the extent possible, Virgin Atlantic kolds foreign
currency balances in the short term to meet its future trading obligations Where there 1s a predicted exposure n foreign
currency holdings, Virgin Atlanuic uses a himited range of hedging mnstruments as stipulated in the Treasury and Aviation
Fuel Price Exposure Management Policies

Fuel price risk

Virgin Atlantic aims to provide protection against sudden and significant increases in the jet fuel price while ensuring that
Virgin Atlanuc may also benefit from price reductions having regard to cash margimn cxposure In order to provide
protection Virgin Atlantic uses a himited range of hedging mstruments, pnncipally zero-cost collars and forwards, with
approved counterparties and within approved hmits

Dervative financial instruments

Virgin Atlantuic uses denvative financial insiruments selecuvely for foreign currency and aviation fuel price risk
management purposes, as described above

Virgin Atlantic s policy 1s not to trade in derivatives but to use these instruments to hedge anticipated future cash flows
Virgin Atlantic does not permit selling currency or jet fuel options, except as part of a fully matched collar hedging
structure  All derivatives are used for the purpose of risk management and accordingly they do not expose Virgin Atlantic
to market risk as they are matched to 1dentsfy physical exposures within these businesses However, the timing difference
between dervative matunty date and current mark-to-market value can give nse to cash margin exposure, this nsk 1s
managed through choice of nstrument. appropriate counterparty agreements and, where required, cash deposits with
counterparties Counterparty credit risk 1s controlled through mark-to-market based credit imits

Working capital and cash flow

Cash 1s managed centrally across a number of investment holding companies and therefore cash balances held wall
fluctuate according to immediate requirements As set out i Note 1, the directors have determined it appropnate to
prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis

Market value of land and buildings

In the opinion of the directors. the market value of the land and buildings of the Group does not significantly exceed the
book values of these assets at 31 March 2013
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Environmental impact (applicable primarily to Virgin Atlantic)

Virgin Atlantic 1s commuitted to addressing and promoting sustainable solutions tor its business and the wider arrline
industry At a muumum, Virgin Atlantic 1s complying with the rules and regulations conceming protection of the
environment, which apply to Virgin Atlantic's operations such as ermissions, noise and dsposal of waste

Over 99% of Virgin Atlantic’s measurable carbon footprint comes from flying arcraft so Virgin Atlantic s primarily
focused on improving fuel and carbon efficiency Virgin Atlantic has a target to reduce CO2 emussions by 30% per
Revenue Tonne Kilometre between 2007 and 2020 At the end of 2011 Virgin Atlantic had reduced its CO2 emissions by
11 46% per RTK against the 2007 baseline New, more efficient aircraft offer significant fuel savings as does efticient
operation and maintenance of the arcraft For the medium to long term, finding an alternative way to power aircraft 1s
crucial In 2011 Virgin Atlantic announced a world-first low carbon aviation fuel, to be delwered in partnership with
LanzaTech The process converts steel waste gases (which would otherwise be flared off to the atmosphere) to produce a
fuel with roughly half the total hifecycle carbon content of kerosene Virgin Atlantic hopes to have a demo flight using the
new tuel in 2013 and plan to uphft fuel in commercial quantties by 2014 On the environment, Virgin Atlantic 1s also
cutting down on ground energy use, buying renewable energy for UK ground operations, buying more fuel efficient
ground vehicles, reducing, reusing and recycling waste and improving what 1s designed and bought

Change 1s 1n the Air (CITTA) 1s the Arline’s sustamability programme and focuses on Virgin Atlantic’s environmental and
community investment activiies CITTA also means engaging with others on the chatlenge of making the whole industry
more sustainable The Airhine reports fully on these activittes each year through CIITA reports which are available o
dowrniload

Sustainability 1s very much aligned with Virgin Atlantic’s brand values, and 1t 1s in the process of being embedded firmly
into the way the Airline does business Top-level management support, putting sustamabihity at the top of Virgin Atlantic’s
agenda, has been key to this process In 2011 Virgm Atlantic established a Sustainability Strategy Group (SSG) which 1s
chaired by the Chiet Commercial Officer and meets quarterly to bring together Directors and other senior managers from
around the busingss In 2012, the SSG reviewed and agreed Virgin Atlantic’s renewed vision, strategy and sustainability
priorities going forwards The Sustainability team provides strategic guidance to the SSG, helping to set ebjectives with ali
S$8G members and monitor and report on-going progress

Through the Virgin Atlantic Foundation (VAF), Virgin Atlantic has renewed 1ts partnership with Free the Children (FTC)
for a further three years FTC 1s a charity which shares Virgin Atlantic's objectives of supporting sustatnable communities
n its destinations, as well as providing young people in the UK with the skills and support needed to get involved wn the
social and environmental 1ssues that matter to them 2012 was an excepticnal year for fundraising £1 5 milhon was given
in time, flights, baggage allowance and money and onboard passenger donations rose by 7% n a year 78 UK schools
signed up for “Be The Change™ school programmes, 16,000 students received a motivational speech and 1,200 students
parucipated 1n leadership workshops International development projects, focused on delivering real and sustainable
improvements n education, water and sanitation, healthcare and alternative income generation 1n partner communities, are
also producing fantastic results

The Group 1s supporting a non-profit orgamisation the Carbon War Room (CWR) n therr programme to accelerate the
development of this early stage market and as a founding member of Aviation Global Deal (AGD), the Group continues Lo
campatgn for an effective carbon cap and trade scheme for the worldwide industry, as an environmentally effective and
cost efficient method for reducing carbon emissions
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Directors
The directors who served during the year were

1 P Woods Alternate R P Blok

R P Blok (appointed 21 June 2013)

N A R Fox (appointed 21 June 2013)

C R Stent (resigned 21 june 2013) Alternates R P Blok (resigned 21 June 2013), G D McCallum (resigned 21 June
2013)

Employees

The Group 1s a non-disciminatory employer operating an Equal Opportunities Policy that aims to eliminate unfar
discnmination, harassment, victimisation and bullying  The Group 15 commtted to ensuring that all individuals are treated
farrly, with respect, and are valued irrespective of disability race, gender, health, social class, sexual preference, marital
status, nationahty, religion, employment status, age or membership or non-membership of a trade union

The Group uses the consullative procedures agreed with its staff and elected representatives with a view to ensuring that
1ts empioyees are aware of the financial and economtc factors that affect the Group™s performance and prospects Within
the bounds of commercial confidentiality, information 15 disseminated to all levels of staff about matters that affcct the
progress of the Group and are of mnterest and concern to them as employees The Group also encourages employees,
where relevant, to meet on a regular basis to discuss matters affecting them

[n considenng applications for employment from disabled people in the UK, the Group secks to ensure that full and fair
consideration 1s given to the abihties and aptitudes ot the applicant against the requirernents of the jobs tor which he or she

has applhied Employees who become temporanly or permanenily disabled are given indmdual consideration, and where
possible equal opportunities for training. career development and promotions are given to disabled persons

Political and charitable contrtbutions

The Group made no pohucal contributions during the year (2012 £nil) Donations to UK charities amounted o £5million
(2012 £7mulhon) of which £5milhion (2012 £4million) was made to Virgin Urnite, a charity affiliated to the Group

Results and dividends

The group profit for the year, after taxation and minonity interesis, amounted to £106millton (2012 ioss of £1 14million)

The directors recommend that no ordinary dividend be paid by the Company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013
(2012 £nil)

Virgin Atlantie Linuted

Preference dividends of £3rullion (2012 £5mullion) were pard during the year, of which £1onullion (2012 £3mullion)
related to minority interests

Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited

Dividends pard duning the year totalled £40million (2012 £29mullion), of which £20mithon (2012 £14mithion) related to
minorty interests
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Provision of mformation to auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the ume when this Directors' Report 1s approved has confirmed that

. so far as that director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company and the Group's
auditor 1s unaware, and

. that director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director m order to be aware of any
information needed by the Company and the Group's auditor n connection with preparing its report and to
establish that the Company and the Group's auditor (s aware of that information

Audrtor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will
therefore continue 1n office

This report was approved by the board on 4 November 2013 and signed on its behalt

B A R Gerrard
Secretary

The Battleship Buillding
179 Harrow Road
London

W2 6NB
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements i accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for cach financial year Under that law the directors
have clected to preparc the financial statements 1in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve
the financial staiements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing these financial statements, the directors
arc required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate o presume that the Group will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for kecping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and cxplain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006 They are also responsible for
sateguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

10




Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary
companies

We have audited the financial statements of Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies for the year ended 31 March
2013, set out on pages 12 to 58 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an Auditor’'s Report and for no other purpose To the tullest extent permitied by law. we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit work. for this report, or for the opmions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more tully 1n the Directors' responsibilities statement on page 10, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to
auduit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and Internauonal Standards on
Auditing (UK and Iretand) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
tor Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Minancial Reporting Council’s website at
www fre org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinton on financial statements

In our epinion the financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and the parent Company’s atfars as at 31 March 2013 and of
the Group's profit for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Pracuce, and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimon the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the finanuial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us 1o report to you
if, 1n our opimion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneratien specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

H Green (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

I5 Canada Square

London

El14 5GL.

4 November 2013



Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

Turnover
Group and share of joint venture's turnover

Less share of jomnt venture’s turnover
Group turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Excepuional administrative expenses credit/(expense)

Total admimstrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Exceptional other operating income

Total other operating expense

Operating profit/(loss)

Share ot operating profit 1n associates/joint ventures

Total operating profit/(loss)

Net exceptional profit on sale of fixed assets
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before interest
Interest recervable and similar ingome

Interest payable and similar charges

Other finance income
L]

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on protit/(loss) on ordinary activities

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation

Minority mnterests

Profit/(loss) for the finanaal year

All amounts relate to continuing operations

The notes on pages 18 to 58 form part of these financial statements
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2013 2012
Note £M £M
4,261 4,069
(215) (235)
2 4,046 3,834
(3,369) (3,048)
677 786
(580) (741)
4 34 (156)
(546) (897)
44) (118
4 11 -
3 kX)) (118)
3 08 (229)
1 6
99 (223)
4 1 10
100 (213)
7 37 41 |
8 {56) (62) ‘
25 5 4
86 (230)
9 11 109
97 (121)
22 9 7
20 106 (114)




Consohdated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Fixed assets

Other intangible assets

Goodwill
Negative goodwill

Net goodwll

Intangible assets

Tangible assets

Investments

Investments n joint ventures
-Share of gross assets
-Share of gross liabilities

Share of net habilities

Current assets
Stocks

Debtors (including £108mithon (2012
£135mullion) due afier more than one year)

Cash at bank

Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Net current habilities

Total assets less current habihties

Creditors amounts falling due after more than

ofie year

Provisions for liabilitves
Deferred tax

Other provisions

Net assets excluding pension scheme liabilities
Defined benefit penston scheme liability

Net assets

Note

10
11
12

13

14

15

16

17
18

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors’ report and financial statements

2013
£M £M
138
310
(10)

300
438
416
19
82
(£02)
(20}
853
45
968
655
1,668
(1,725)
(57
796
(392)
(34)
(165)
(199)
205
(1)
204

31 March 2013

Registered number 03160887

2012
£M £M
150
324
(1
313

463
399
20
13
(130)
(17)
865
45
1071
643
1,759
(1,802)
(43)
822
(438)
(60)
(196)
(256)
128
(n
127



Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 19
Share premium account 20
Profit and loss account 20
Shareholders’ funds 21
Minority interests 22

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

421 421
1 -
(267) (374
155 47
49 10
204 127

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 4

November 2013

6/

I P Woods
Director

The notes on pages 18 to 58 form part ot these financial statements
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Fixed assets

Investments

Current assets
Debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current habihities

Net assets

Capital and Reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account

Profit and loss account

Shareholders' funds

Note

12

14
5

19
20
20

21

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors’ report and financial statements

31 March 2013

Registered number 03160887

2013
™M £M

2,529

104
(2,524)

(2,420)

109

421

3ty

199

iM

112
(2,450)

2012
™M

2,529

(2,338)

191

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 4

November 2013

I P Woods
Director

The notes on pages 18 to 58 form part of these financial statements
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31 March 2013

Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

Gain/(loss) for the financial year

Group

Share of joint ventures

Currency translation ditferences on net foretgn currency investments

Actuanial {oss on pension scheme

Unrealised gain on sale of subsidiaries and other sharehotdings

Unrealised gain on sale of intangible assets net of tax

Total recogmised gains/(losses) relating to the financial year

The notes on pages 18 to 58 torm part of these financial statements

2013 2012

Note £M ™M
108 (117)

12 2) 3
20 106 {14
20 1 2
- 1)

. 13

- 3

1 17

107 97
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Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note £M M
Net cash flow from operating activities 28 195 122
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 30 (65) 47)
Taxation 5 (18)
Capital expenditure and firancial investment 30 90) (125)
Acquisitions and disposals 30 3 25
Cash mflow/(outflow) before financing 38 (43)
Financing 30 (32) (87)
Increase/(Decrease) in cash 1n the year 6 (130)
Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Funds/Debt
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
&M £M
Inerease/(Decrease) in cash in the year 6 {130
Cash outflow from decrease in debt and lease financing 27 134
Change 1n net debt resulting from cash flows 33 4
Other non-cash changes 120 19
Translation differences n 13
Movement n net debt in the year 152 36
Net debt at 1 April 2012 (286) (322)
Net debt at 31 March 2013 29 (134) (286)

The notes on pages 18 to 58 form part of these financial statements




Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financal statements
31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting Policies

The following accounting pelicies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material 1n reiation to the Group’s financial statements for the year under review, except as noted below

1.2

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and mn accordance with
applicable accounting standards

The holding company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, and a separate profit
and loss account of the Company has not been published The profit for the year attributable to the Company
15 disclosed 1n Note 21

Basis of consohdation

The financial statements conselidate the accounts of Virgin Wings Limited and all of its subsidiary
undertakings ('subsidiaries’), reteired to as the 'Group’

Except 1n the case of Virgin Atlantic Limited and Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited, the acquisition method
ot accounting has been adopted Under this method, the results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or
disposed of are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal

In the case of Virgin Atlantic Limited and Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited, merger accounting has been
adopted, as 1t its business had been part of Virgin Wings Limited since it came under common control

Where an unrealised gain or loss arises on the dilution of the Group’s interest in the net liabilities/assets of a
subsidiary, associale or joint venture, the respective gain or loss s reflected directly as a movement 1n the
Group’s reserves

A joint venture 1s an undertaking ih which the Group has a long term interest and over which 1t exercises joint
control The Group’s share ot the profits less losses of joint ventures 1s included in the consolidated profit and
loss account and 1ts interest tn ther net assets 1s included in investments on the balance sheet

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included from the effective date of acquisition

The consohidated financial statements have been compiled using the financial statements of Virgin Wings
Limited s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates for accounting periods which are usually coterminous with
Virgin Wings Limited’s own accounting reference date  Where such entities have different accounting
reference dates, appropnate adjustments have been made to realign the figures for those entities such that they
are ncorporated for the period covered by this financial information  Tn some instances 1t has not been
practical to obtain appropriate financial information covening the year ended 31 March 2013 In these
circumstances, 1n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 2, *Accounting for Subsidiary Undertakings™,
a period ending within the three months prior to that date has been used mnstead The impact of transactions
that have taken place 1n the intervening period to 31 March 2013 and the equvalent period in the prior year
have only been adjusted for where the impact 1s considered material in these accounts

I8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting Policies {continued)

12

13

Basis of consohdation (continued)

The principal entiies for which non-coterminous accounting reference dates, within three months of Virgin
Wings Limited’s accounting reference date, have been used (including during the comparative period) are as
follows

Subsidiary's year Length of period Length of period

end inclrded m these mcluded in the

accounts comparatives

Virgin Atlantic Limuted 28 February 2013 12 months 12 months
Virgm Raul Group Holdings Limited 31 March 2013 52 weeks 56 weeks

The results ot Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited included within these group accounts for the year ended
31 March 2013 are for 52 weeks (31 March 2012 are for 56 wecks) due to a change in accounting reference
date to bring the company 1n line with the rail industry standard

Turnover

Turnover compnises revenue recognised by the Company 1n respect of goods and services supplied during the
year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts

Air travel

Turnover 1s stated gross of commission. and comprises revenue from passenger ticket sales, cargo and
ancillary goods and services m respect of flights operated in the accounting penod, sales of holiday packages
and travel nsurance with departure dates  the accounting period, and income relaung to rights over the use
of the Virgin name and 1ts intellectual property Revenue relating to flights, hohdays and travel insurance
commencing after the accounting period, together with any commuission thereen, 1s carried forward as deferred
mmcome Unused tickets are recogmsed as tumover on a systematic basis

The Virgin Atlantic Group also recerves agency commussion for the sale of third party hohday products The
agency commission due from the third party 1s recogrised when earned, typically at date of booking

Rail

Tumover represents amounts receivable, excluding VAT, for services and goods supplied to external
customers, primarily in respect of passenger transportation Turnover originates wholly in the UK

Passenger revenue principally represents amounts attiibuted to the Group by the Railway Setilement Plan
(which admimisters the inceme allocauon system within the UK rail ndustry) for cach financal period
Income 15 attributed based on models of certain aspects of passenger behaviour and. to a lesser extent, from
allocauons agreed for specific revenue flows The attmbuted share of season tcket income 1s deferred within
creditors and released to the profit and loss account over the hie of the relevant season ticket

Other trading income consists principally of the provision of station facilities to other train operators, retal
commusstons, car parking and the hire out of tramn crew and rolling stock Other trading income and catering

income are recognised as the income 1s earned

Turnover 15 recognised when all performance conditions associated with the turnover have been met
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting Policies (continued)

13

14

15

1.6

Turnover (continued)
Royaltes

Rovalties are recetvable under trademark licence agreements entered into with companies using the Virgin
brand (Licensees), exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts Royalties recetvable are recognised as
earned typically based on a percentage of the revenues of the Licensee, subject to mummum guarantees
Certain licences are pre-paid, and these royalty revenues are recognised on a straight line basis over the term
of the hcence agreement

Rail franchise expense

Revenue grants receivable/payable in respect of the operation of the rail franchises are taken to other operating
expenses in the profit and loss account in the tinancial year to which they relate

Compensation for service disruption

Compensation receivable/payable for service disruption under the performance regime provisions of the track
access agreements with Network Rail 1s recognised over the pertod of disruption and the net amount i1s shown
within other operating income Network change compensation rccetvable in respect of lost revenue and
incremental costs incurred due to Network Rail’s alterations of the track and infrastructure 1s recognised over
the period of disruption and 1s shown within other operating income

Admmistrative expenses
Administrative expenses comprise overhead expenses, depreciation of assets and amortisation of goodwill.

together with markeung and promotional costs Marketing and promotional costs are expensed to the profit
and loss account as incurred

20
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31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounfing Policies (continued)

1.7 Goodwlll, negative goadwill and other intangible fixed assets

1.8

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 10, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, positive goodwll
arising on consohdauon (represenung the excess of the fair value of the constderation given over the fair value
of the separable net assets acquired) s capitahised in the balance sheet as an mtangible asset at cost and
amortised to mil by equal annual instalments over its esumated useful economic life as set out in Note 10 If the
goodwill 1s considered to have an indefinite useful life, 1t 1s not amortised but s subject to annual review for
impairment Negative goodwill arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions 1s included within intangible
fixed assets and released to the profit and loss account 1n the pertod in which the fair value of the non-
monetary assets purchased on the same acquisition are recovered, whether through depreciation or sale On the
subsequent disposal or termination of a business acquired, the profit or loss on disposal or termination 1s
calculated afier charging (crediting) the unamortised amount of any related goodwill (negative goodwill) In
the Group’s financial statements, investments 1 subsichary underiakings, associates and joint ventures are
stated at cost less amounts written off

Intellectual property rights, concessions, patents, licences and trademarks purchased are capitalised and
amortised through the profit and loss account over the expected useful economic life of the asset

Carbon allowances received free of charge under the EU Emissions Trading Scheme, which became effective
tor the aviation industry on 1 January 2012, are recognised as mtangible assets at market value on the date of
receipt Consistent with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 4 Accounting for Government Grants’,
the value of allowances recetved 1s deterred and recogmised in income on a systematic basis over the period to
which the grant relates The esumated gross cost of setthing the hability for CO2 emitted in the period 1s
recognised 1n the profit and loss as incurred

Durtng 2012 the governments of China, the Russian Federation and the US formalty banned their airlines from
participating n the scheme  Following this, in November 2012, the EU announced 1ts intention to remove the
compliance requirements on international aviation for one year Compliance will be reinstated for future years
if the International Civil Aviation Orgamsation (ICAQ) 1s not successful in mtroducing a global cap and trade
scheme for emissions If the [CAO agrees a global scheme, then the intention would be to make the suspension
permanent Given the current global position the Directors consider there to be sufficient uncertainty
surrounding the operation of the EU ETS for international flying to not recognise any net assets or habilities
under the scheme as at the balance sheet date

Development expenditure

Development expenditure, relating primarily to the setting up of new routes and introducing new aircraft to the
fleet, 1s charged to the profit and loss account as incurred
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting Policies (continued)

19

110

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation  Depreciation 15 provided at rates calculated to wnite
off the cost of fixed assets, less their esimated residual value, over their expected usetul hives on the following
bases

Frechold land - Not depreciated

Freehold property - Up to 50 years

Leaschold land and buildings - Term of lease up to 50 years
Plant & machinery - 3- 10 years

Motor vehicles - 3 -4 years

Furniture & fitings - 2 - 10 years

Olfice equipment - 3 -5 years

Computcr equipment and software - 3 - 10 years

Aarcrafl, aircraft spares and rotables - Upto 25 years

Aircraft and engine maintenance costs 1n respect of major overhauls, which are typically carmed out at
infervals greater than one year, are caputalised and depreciated by reference to thewr units of economic
consumption, typically hours or sectors flown Part of the imual cost of new or used aircraft 1s treated as
maintenance cxpenditure based upen 1ts marntenance status on acquisition and the current cost of the
maintenance procedures The balance of aircraft and engine cost 1s depreciated on a straight line basis over
penods of up to twenty five years so as to reduce the cost to estimated residual value at the end of that penod
The eftective depreciation rate per annum in respect ol new wide-bodied aircraft 1s approximately 4%

Rotable spares are depreciated on a straight-hine basis so as to reduce the cost or valuation to esumated
residual value at the end of that period The depreciation rate per annum 1n respect of rotable spares 1s 7 25%
or 12 5% dependent on type

Expenditurc incurred on modifications to aircraft under operating leases 15 depreciated on a straight-hine basis
to a ml residual value over a pertod not exceeding the lease period

Design and content development costs of websites are capitahised only to the extent that they lead to the
creation of an endunng asset delivering benefits at least as greal as the amount capitalised [If there 1s
nsufficient evidence on which Lo base reasonable esumates of the economuic benefits that will be generated 1n
the period unul the design and content are next updated, the costs of developing the design and content are
charged to the profit and loss account as incurred

The Group evaluates uis fixed assets for financial impairment where events or circumstances indicate that the
carryig amount of such assets may not be fully recoverable When such evaluations indicate that the carrying
value of an asset exceeds 1ts recoverable amount an impatrment 1n value 1s recorded and charged through the
profit and loss account

Landing slot expenditure

The Virgin Atlanuc Group has previously amortised purchased landing slots over therr useful economic life
which has been estimated at 20 years from the date at which they came into service The directors of Virgin
Atlantic Group reassessed this economic ife in view of the Open Skies agreements, which came into effect 1n
2008 and increased and developed a more transparent market for slots, and also 1n view of the legai rights for
slots, which provide that the holder has *grandfather rights’ for landing slots that continue for an indefinite
pertod As a result of those developments, purchased landing slots are considered to have an ndefinute
economic life and are not amortised Instead, they are subject to an annual rmpairment review and a provision
15 recognised for any identified impairment
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1 Accounting Policies (continued)
1 11 lovestments
(1)  Subsidiary undertakings

)

(1)

1.12

113

1.14

1.15

Investments 1n subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment

Joint venture undertakings

Investments in joint ventures are stated at the Company's share of net assets The Company's share of the
profits or losses of the joint ventures 1s included in the Profit and Loss Account using the equity accounting
basis )

Other investments
Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Leasing and hire purchase

Assels obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases are capitahsed as tangible fixed assets Assets
acquired by finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful hives Assets
acquired by hire purchase are depreciated over their useful hves Finance leases are those where substantiatly
all of the benefits and nisks of ownership are assumed by the Company Obligations under such agreements are
included n creditors net of the finance charge allocated to future periods The finance element of the rental
payment 1s charged to the profit and loss account so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the net
obligation outstanding in each period

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases arc charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease
term

Benefits recerved and recervable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recogmiscd on a straight-line
basts over the pertod until the date the rent 1s expected to be adjusted to the prevailing markel rate

Leaschold dilapidations and onerous lease provisions are discounted, with the unwinding of the discount being
taken to the profit and loss account

Dhvidends

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a hability at that date to the extent that they
are appropriately authonsed and are no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not
meet these criteria are disclosed (n the notes to the financial statements  As at 31 March 2013, there 1s no
dividend hability (2012 £mi})

Aiarcraft maintenance costs

Routine maintenance costs are charged to the profit and loss account as mcurred Maintenance costs for
overhauls relating to aircraft and engines held under operating leases for which there 1s a contractual
obligation are provided for by making appropriate charges to the profit and loss account For owned aircraft
and engines, major overhaul expenditure 1s capitalised and depreciated by reference to the units of economic
consumption, typrcally hours or sectors flown

Where the effect 1s material, the provision for maintenance costs 1s discounted 10 present value using a current
pre-tax discount rate that reflects the nisks specific to the hahihity
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1.

Accounting Policies (contimued)

116

1.17

1.18

119

New train service arrangement costs

Under the ongnal franchise agreements, the Virgin Rail Group was required to operate faster and more
frequent services on the West Coast Matn Line In order to achieve this, contracts were entered into seveial
years ago to lease new trans under operating lease arrangements In accordance with these agreements, Virgin
Rail Group incurred direct costs on behalf of the lessor associated with developing the contracted new train
service arrangements These costs are an integral part of the operating lease expense, and therefore were
recorded within prepayments when incurred, and are being charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-
line basis from the point at which new trains came into operation, until the earlier of the end of the relevant
lease agreements or the franchise terms

Track access costs

Track access costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the period to which they relate, based on the
terms of the contract

Network Rail has undertaken a programme of infrastructure works to upgrade the West Coast Main Line to
enable trains to run at higher speeds and frequencies Under a series of suppiemental track access agreements,
the Virgin Rail Group paid additional separately 1dentifiable track access charges in respect of the increased
track speed and capacity that these infrastructure improvement works create This increased track capacity
became available to the Virgin Rail Group with the introduction of the timetable in September 2004 In order
that additional track access charges can be recorded in the periods in which the Virgin Rail Group benetits
from the additional track capacity additional payments made prior to September 2004 were recorded within
prepayments and are being charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-hne basis from September 2004
to the end of the franchise term

Fuel costs

Fuel cosis represent the commodity spot price ruling at the date of the wransaction or, 1f appropnate, the
commodity price under the related fuel hedging contract, together with the costs of delivery and duty

Frequent flyer programme

Virgin Atlantic s frequent flyer programme Flying Club allows customers to earn mileage credits by flying on
Virgin Atlantic (and selected partner arrlines) as well as through participating companies such as credit card
1ssuers  Flying Club members can redeem mules for flights on Virgin Atlantic, selected partner awrlines and
other partners such as hotels and car rental companies

Where the fair vatue of miles 1ssued 1s sigmficant tn the context of the overall undetlying transaction, the fair
value of miles 1ssued at the expected redemption rate 1s deferred and recogmised n revenue when redeemed
and services are provided Where the fair value of miles 1ssued 15 not significant 1n the context of the overall
underlying transaction, no revenue 15 deferred and an onerous cost obhgation 15 provided for on an incremental
cost basis at the expected redemption rate

24



Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary compantes
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

1

Accounting Policies (continued)

120

1.21

1.22

123

124

Cash and hqud resources

Cash at bank and in hand includes both cash and hquid resources Cash includes cash in hand and deposits
repayable on demand, less overdrafls payable on demand Liquid resources are current asset nvestments
which are disposable without curtmbing or disrupting the business and are either readily convertible into
known amounts of cash at or close to ther carrying values or traded in an active market Liquid rescurces
include term deposits

Provisions

Provisions are recognised where the Group has a present obhigation as a result of a past event and 1t 1s
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligaion The amounts recogmised are the best
estimate of the expenditure that will be required 1o meet the Group s obligation Where provisions are
discounted, the unwinding of the discount 1s taken to the profit and loss account

Stocks and work n progress

Stocks and work in progress are vaiued at the lower of cost and net reahisable value after making due
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving stocks Cost includes all direct costs and an appropniate proportion of
fixed and vartable overheads

Deferred taxation

Full provision 15 made for deferred tax assets and habilities arising from all tming differences between the
recognition of gains and losses 1n the financial statements and recognition in the tax computation

A net deferred tax asset 1s recognised only 1f it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying uming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax assets and habilwies are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at the time the timing
difterences are expected to reverse

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted
Forergn currencies

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction or,
1f hedged, at the forward contract rate

Exchange gains and losses are recognised 1n the Profit and Loss Account

The assets and habilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associated undertakings, are
translated at the closing exchange rates or, where applicable, at hedged rates Profit and loss accounts of such
undertakings are consclidated at the average rales of exchange during the year Gauns and losses ansing an
these translations, net of exchange differences ansing on related foreign currency borrowings are taken
directly to reserves and reported within the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Loans between companies within the Group are translated at historic rates 1f there 1s a clear expectation and

understanding from both parties that the loan will not be repaid  All other intra-group loans are retranslated at
year end rates
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125

126

127

Pensions

Certain subsidiaries within the Group operate defined contribution pension stheme and the pension charge
represents the amounts payable by the Group to the fund in respect of the year

West Coast Traimns Limited a subsidiary of Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited, participates 1n the Railways
Pension Scheme (“RPS™), which provides benefits on a defined benefit basis The asscis of the scheme are
held separately from those ol the Group in an independently administered tund T'he RPS 15 a shared cost
scheme with costs being shared between the employer and the members on the basis of a 60 40 split

The Group has ne rights or obligations n respect of the RPS following expiry of the related franchises
Therefore, the habiliies recognised for the relevant sections of RPS only represent that parnt of the net deficit
of each section that the employer 1s obliged to fund over the Life of the franchise 1o which the section relates
The restniction on the labihties 1s presented as a * franchise adjustment” to the overall deficit

The Group’s contributions to the schemes are paid n accordance with the scheme rules and the
recommendation of the actuary The charge to operating profit reflects the current service costs of such
obligations The expected return on scheme assets, the interest cost on scheme habilities and the unwinding of
the discount on the franchise adjustment are included within other finance mcome (net) in the profit and loss
account

Ditierences between the actual and expected returns on assets and experience gains/(losses) arising on the
scheme labilities during the year, together with differences ansing from changes in assumptions, are
recogmised n the statement of total recogmised gains and losses in the year The resulting defined benefit
asset/liabihity, net of the franchise adjustment and any deferred tax, 15 presented separately after other net
assets on the face of the balance sheet

Pension scheme assets are measured using market values For quoted secunties the current bid-price 1s taken
as market value Pension scheme hiabilities are measured using a projected umit method and discounted at the
current rate of return

Long Term Incentive Plan (L TIP)

The Group accrues for any element of foreseeable future awards for employees and directors under LTIPs
which have been agreed by the Board ot Directors, and which are deemed to have been eamed 1n the current
year

Share based payments

All share based payments are treated as cash settled transactions as they either require full settlement in cash or
where settlement in shares 1s envisaged the 1ssuer has established the practice of buying out the option at the
end of its term The fair value of the amount payable to the employee 1s recognised as an expense with a
corresponding increase tn ltabiliies The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the period during
which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment The far value 1s measured based on an
option pricing model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted
The habihity 1s revalued at each balance sheet date and settlement date with any changes to fair value being
recognised n the profit and loss account
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t 28 Classification of financial instruments i1ssued by the Group

The Group uses various derivative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to interest rate movements and
toreign exchange nisks  Gains and losses on hedges of revenue or operating payments are recognised 1n the
profit and loss account of the period in which the hedged transaction matures or 1s closed out

Financial instruments ssued by the Group are treated as equity (1 e forming part of sharcholders’ funds) only
to the extent that they meet the following two conditions

(a} they include no contractual obligations upon the Company (or Group, as the case may be) to deliver
cash or other financial assets, or to exchange financial assets or financial l:abilities with another party
under conditions that are potentiatly unfavourabie to the Company (or Group), and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity tnstruments, 1t 1s either a non-
derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity
instruments, or 1s a denvative that will be settled by the Company’s exchanging a fixed amount of cash
or other financial assets for a fixed number ot 1ts own equity mstruments

To the extent that this definition 15 not met, the proceeds of 1ssue are classified as a financial hability Where
the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented 1n these
financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts i relation to
those shares Finance payments associated with financial habilities are dealt with as part of mnterest payable
and similar charges Finance payments associated with financial instruments that are classified as part of
shareholders funds are dealt with as appropriations tn the reconciliation of movements 1n shareholders’ funds

For the year ended 31 March 2013, preference dividends payable of £mil (2012 £ml) were recognised within
the total interest payable expense, as disclosed 1n Note §
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2 Segmental information

Virgin Wings Limied and subsidiary companies

Directors' report and financial statements

31 March 2013

The table below sets out information for each of the Group's industry segments and geographic areas of operation

By activity Turnover Turnover Group Group Net operating Net operating
operating operating assets/ assets/
profit/(loss) profit/(loss) {hablities) {habilittes)
Yearended Yearended Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£M £M £M &M £M £M
Air travel 2,854 2,731 (18) (179) (247 {(231)
Rail 898 938 3 36 (43) (24)
Retail 6 7 - 2 6 7
Maobile telecoms 211 216 1 5 20) (19
Financial services 29 24 4 3 8 (5)
Hotels 28 27 5 3) 45 45
Healthcare 156 26 ()] (10) (8) -
Other trading 24 36 10 to 24 27
Management services 35 64 149 (79) 410 345
4,261 4,069 99 {223) 159 145
Less share of joint
ventures turmover/
operating loss 215) (235) n (6)
Total 4,046 3,834 98 229)

Management services include provisions against fixed asset investments and amounts due from related parties

Other trading principally includes brand licensing
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Segmental information (continued)

By geographical market

UK

Europe

North America
Africa

Asia

Australasia
Management services

Less share of joint ventures' turnover

Total

Turnover by

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Turnover by

Turnover by

Turnover by

origin orgin destination destimation

Year ended 31  Yecarended 31 Year ended 31 Yecar ended 31
March 2013 March 2012 March 2013 March 2012
£M £M £M ™M

2,881 2,764 1,098 993

360 298 271 310

499 463 1,960 1,797

153 162 307 323

222 228 477 485

91 920 93 97

55 04 55 64

4,261 4,069 4,261 4,069
(215) (235) 215) (235)

4,046 3834 4,046 3,834

The geographical analysis of revenue by origin 1s derived by allocating revenue to the area in which the sale 1s

made

The geographical analysis of revenue by destination 1s denived by atlocating revenue from inbound and outbound
services between the United Kingdom and overseas points to the geographical area in which the refevant overseas
point lles Revenue from the sale of package holidays 15 altocated to the geographical area in which the heliday 1s

taken

By geographical market

UK

Europe

North Amernica
Afnca

Asia

Australasia
Management services

Less share of joint ventures' operating loss

Total

Group Group operating Net operating

Net operating

operating profit/(loss) assets/ assets/
profit/(loss) (liabilities) (liabilities)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
iM ™M £M £™:M
(56) (144) (336) (246)
13 10 73 30
(5) ) 17 21
- 1)) 3) (2)
2) &) 2) (2)
149 (79) 410 344
99 (223) 159 145
1) (6)
98 (229)

Due to the nature of the arline industry, any fixed asscts within these segments are categorised geographically by

where the holding entity 1s based
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3. Operatng profit/(loss)
The operating profit/(loss) 15 stated after charging/(crediting)

Amortisation - mtangible fixed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

- owned by the group

- held under finance leases
Operating lease rentals

- land and buildings

- aircraft and other

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Durectors' report and financial statements

2013
iM

19

63

27
352

Provision charged against debts owed by group and tellow subsidiary

undertakings*

1

Provision writeback against debts owed by group and fellow subsidiary

undertakings*

(178)

31 March 2013

2012
£M

41

29
315

* Net provision writeback against debts owed by group and fellow subsidiary undertakings has ansen mostly due to

Group restructuring in the year

Other operating (expense)/income

Other operating tncome

Rail franchise expense

Network change compensation and performance regime
Operating income from related parties

Other exceptional operating income being bid costs refund

Auditors' remuneration

2013 2012
£M £M
5 13
(104) (170
40 23
] 16
(44) (E18)
11 -
33) (118)
2013 2012
£ £M

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and 1ts associates in respect of
The auditing of accounts of subsidianies of the Company pursuant

to legislation
All other services

Fees pavable for the audit of these financial statements 1s £n1l (2012 £mil)
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4.

Exceptional items

2013 2012
£M £
Admmistrative income/(expenses) 34 (156)
Other operating income 11 -
Net profit on sale of fixed assets 1 10
46 (146)

Exceptional admimstrative expenses in the current year relate to fixed assets imparments of £1million (note 11)
(2012 £156mullion)

Exceptional admimstrative credit of £35mullion in the current year relates to the reversal of a provision recognised
in the year ended 28 February 2010 in connection with the investigations 1nto various aspects of pricing and
commercial 1ssues in the arrline industry The investigations have now been closed and Virgin Atlantic has been
cleared of all obligations and Liabihues

Exceptionatl other operating income n the current year relates to a refund of bid costs Following the cancellation
of the bid for the West Coast tranchise the Department for Transport announced that 1t would reimburse the bid
costs incurred The bid costs refund 1s 1n respect of amounts received during the financial period

Directors' remuneration

The directors did not recerve any remuneration dunng the year for services to the Company (2012 £mil)

Staff costs
Staff costs were as follows
2013 2012
M M
Wages and salartes 552 454
Social secunity costs 52 47
Other pension costs (Note 25} 46 36
Share-based payments (Note 27) - 2
Other costs 3 3

653 542

The average monthly number of employees employed by the Group, including the directors, during the year was as
follows

Management and admimistration 1,841 2,227
Flight and cabin crew 4,476 4 265
Reservations and sales 2,840 2,712
Engineering, cargo and production 1427 1414
Operations 6,126 2,565

16,710 13.183

The Company had no employees in the year (2012 mil)
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7 Interest receivable

2013 2012
&M £M
Interest recetvable from related undertakings 20 29
Bank interest receivable P 6
Other interest receivable 14 6

Net foreign exchange gains 1 -
37 41

Interest payable and similar charges

2013 2012
&M ™M
On bank loans and overdrafts 32 38
On finance leases and hire purchase contracts 1 1
On loans from related undertakings 6 9
Share ot jont ventures' interest payable 1 1
Other interest payable 16 9
Net foreign exchange losses - 4
56 62
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Taxation

Analysis of tax charge/(credit) in the year
Current tax

UK corporation tax charge on profit/loss for the year

Adjustments 1n respect of prior periods

Double taxation rehef

Foreign tax on income for the year

Share of joint ventures’ current tax
Total current tax

Deferred tax

Ongmation and reversal of timing differences
Ettect of rate change
Adjustments n respect of prior periods

Share of joint ventures' deferred tax
Total deferred tax

Tax on profit/loss on ordimary activities

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

2013 2012
£M ™M
9 10
@ (94)
7 (84)
n (N
6 (85)

y3 2
8 (83)

- |
] (82)
(15) 27
3 (6)
n 5
1) (28)

2 1
(19) 2N
() (109)
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Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

31 March 2013

The tax assessed for the year 1s lower than (2012 - lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of

24% (2012 - 26%) The differences are explamed below

Profit/loss on ordinary activities before tax

Profit/loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 24% (2012 - 26%)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Capual allowances for year 1n excess of depreciation

Utilisation of tax losses

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods

Other tmuing differences leading to an increase (decrease) in taxation
Non-taxable income

Unrehieved tax losses carried forward

Current tax charge/(credit) for the year

2013 2012
M £M
86 (230)
21 (60)
12 62
11 3)
(6) M
2) 99
“4) €y
(55) (12)
31 36
8 (82)
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10

Intangible fixed assets

Negative Landing [ntellectual Carbon

Goodwill goodwill slots property Licenses Total
Group £M M £M iM £M £M
Cost
At1 Apnl 2012 679 (13) 72 78 18 834
Additions 1 - 8 1 1 11
Disposals - - - - (18) s
On acquisition of subsidiaries - - . 1 - 1
At 31 March 2013 680 ) 80 80 1 828
Amortisation
At 1 April 2012 355 2 4 14 - 37
Charge for the year 15 ) - 5 - 19
At 31 March 2013 370 3 4 19 - 390
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 310 (10) 76 6t 1 438
At 31 March 2012 324 (1 68 64 18 463

Intellectual property

Virgin Enterprises Limited holds intetlectual property licences amounting to £60million (2012 £64million) The
licence assigned from Virgin Money Limited on 26 November 2007 1s amortised over approximately 10 years,
being the remaiming period accorded on these licences A license agreement with Virgin Active IPCO Limuted
(formerly ActivelPCo Linuted), an associate ot the ultimate parent undertaking Virgin Group Holdings Limuted
entered into on 20 October 2011, required an upfront payment of £60million, which 15 being amortised over 27
years, representing the period of the head licence

Carbon Licenses

Carbon hicenses amounting to £1million (2012 £18mullion) refates to hicenses obtained under the EU Emissions
Trading Scheme Consistent with the Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 4 'Accounting for Government
Grants', the value ot allowances received 1s deferred and recognised in income on a systematic basis of the period
to which the grant relates

Landing slots
Landing slots amounting to £76mullion (2012 £68muilhion) relates to the capitalisation of the cost of landing slots
purchased by Virgin Atlantic Limited These are considered (o have an indefinte economic hife and are not

amortsed, instead they are subject to an annual 1mpairment review and a provision is recognised for any 1dentified
impairment
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Intangible fixed assets (continued)

Goodwill and negative goodwiil

31 March 2013

All goodwiil 15 amorused on a straight-line basis The following sets out the periods over which goodwill 1s

amortised and the reasons for the pertods chosen

Goodwill in relation to Amortisation period Goodwill cost
EA |
Virgin Care Group 5 years 4)
Virgin Hotels Group Limited and subsidiaries 20 years )] I
Barfair Limited and subsidianes 20 years 99
Bluebottle UK Limited 20 years (67)
Virgin Atlantic Limited 20 years 459
Virgin Rail Group Holdings Linted 91 months 23+
Virgin Healthcare Holdings Limited 20 years 4

* Goodwill fully amortised

The Directors consider each acquisition separatety for the purpose of determining the amortisation period of any

goodwll that arises

Where evidence of goodwill impairment has ansen, the impairment charge was taken to the profit and loss account

as an exceptional item
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11.  Tangible fixed assets

Arrcraft,
arrcraft Assets in the
Freehold Leasehold sparesand Plant & Furniture course of
property  Property rotables machinery & fittmgs construction Total
Group £M £M £M £M iM £M £M
Cost
At 1 April 2012 63 10 612 12 332 46 1,075
Additions 5 - 15 3 6 74 103
Transfers from/(to)
current assets - - n - - - n
Disposals - 2) (64) - (11%8) (1) (182)
On acquisition of
subsidiaries - i - 1 - - 2
Transter between
classes - - 61 - 28 (89) -
Foreign exchange
1 - - | - - 2
movement
At 31 March 2013 69 9 623 17 251 30 999
Depreciation
At | April 2012 1 5 409 2 259 - 676
Charge for the year 2 | 34 4 28 - 69
On acquisition of
subsidiaries - | - - - - 1
On disposals - 2) (48) - (115) - (165)
Impairment charge - - - - 1 - 1
Foreign exchange
- - - 1 - - 1
movement
At 31 March 2013 3 5 395 7 173 - 583
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 66 4 228 10 78 30 416
At 31 March 2012 62 5 203 16 73 46 399

The net book value and depreciation of assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts included above
are as follows

Net book Deprectation Net book  Depreciation

value charge value charge

2013 2013 2012 2012

£M £ £M £

Auarcrafi, aircrafl sparcs and rotables 39 6 36 5
Plant and machinery 1 - 1 -

40 6 37 5
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12

Tangtble fixed assets (continued)

The net book value of land and bu:ldings comprises

Freehold
Long leasehold
Short leasehold

Fixed asset investments

Group
Cost or valuation

At 1 Aprid 2012
Additions
Disposals
Share of loss

At 31 March 2013

Impairment
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements

31 March 2013

Group Group
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£M ™M
66 62
- 1
3 4
69 67
Investment 1n Other
jomt ventures nvestments Total
£M M M
an 27 10
- 1 1
tn (2) 3)
2) - 2)
{20) 26 6
- 7 7
20) 19 1
(17 20 3
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12

Fixed asset investments (continued)

Participating interests

The Group's share of the joint venture's net habilities at the balance sheet date was as follows

Share of assets

Fixed assets
Current assets

Share of habihties

Due within one year or less
Due afier more than one year

Share of net habihities

Company
Cost or valuation

Al Apnil 2012 and 31 March 2013

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements

2013

£M £M
22
60

82
94)
(8)

(102)

20)

31 March 2013

2012
™M £M
40
73
113
(128)
2)
(130)
(17)
Investments
in subsidiary
companies
£™M
1519
2,529
2,529
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Fixed asset investments (continued)

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements

31 March 2013

Virgin Wings Limited considers sts principal undertakings to be those companies that have sigmficant trading
activities and provide funding to other companies within the Group The principal undertakings in which the Group
has an interest at the peried end are as follows

Subsidiary undertakings

Virgin Holdings Limited *

Cilassboss Limited

Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited *

Virgin Gym Holdings Limited *
(strike off applied for)

Virgin Management SA *

Virgin Healthcare Holdings Limited *

VML 2 Lamuted *

Virgin Atlantic Limited *

Barfair Limited *

Vanson Developments Limited *
Virgin Management Limited *
Virgin Models Limited *
Voyager Group Limited *

Necker Island (BVI) Limited *
Network Dhstnibuting Limted *

Virgin Life Care Investments Limited *

Virgin Oceante Expedition LLC *

Virgin Management USA Inc *

Virgin Sky Investments Limited *

Vexair Limited *

Virgin Management Asia Pacific Pty
Limited *

Bluebottle UK Limited *

Bluebottle Investments (UK) Limited *

Virgin Cinemas Group Limited *

VEL Holdings Limiuted *
Virgin Enterprises Limited *

Virgin Hotels Group Limited *
Virgin lnsight Limited *

Joint ventures

Omer Telecom Limited * »

Trade investments

Aur Nigena Development Limited * A*

* Indirectly held investment

Country of
registration

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

Switzerland
England & Wales

Bnush Virgin Islands

England & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Engalnd & Wales

Bntish Virgin [slands

England & Wales

England & Wales
usa

Usa

England & Wales
England & Wales
Australia

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales

Nigena

Prinaipal
activity

Investment holding company
Investment holding company

Train operator
Investment holding company

Management services

Health service provider
Investment holding company
Flight and holiday operator

Investment hoiding company
Investment holding company

Management services
Investment holding company
Investment holding company

Hotel operator
Media company

Health and rewards program
Submarine operator
Management services
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Management services

[nvestment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company

Investment holding company
Brand licensing

Hotel operator
Procurement services

Mobule phone operator

Flight operator

Holding

100 0
100 0
510
1000

106 0
938
100 0
510
510
1006 0
1000
1060
100 0
1000
10G O
1000
1000
1060
9115
1000
1000
1000
1000
1000

1000
1000
1000
100 O
1000
1000
1000
1000
1000

46 4

490

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Preference
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Preference
Ordinary
Ordinary
Preference
Ordinary
Partner equity
Common stock
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Preference
Ordinary
Ordinary
Preference
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

~ Virgin and Carphone Warchouse each own or control 46 4% of the voling nghts but 46 2% of the economic
nghts The remaining 7 2% of voting rights and 7 6% of economic rights are held by a thuird parties
A The Group s interest in Air Nigena Development Limited (s classified as trade investments as the Group 1s

unable to exercise significant influence as a result of the posiuon of the major shareholders
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13.

14.

Stocks

Raw materals

Work 1n progress

Fimished goods and goods for resale
Aurcraft consumable spares

Debtors

Due after more than one year

Amounts owed by related undertakings
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by retated undertakings

Other taxation and soc:al security

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
*Tax recoverable

Deferred tax asset

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary compames

Duectors' report and financial statements

31 March 2013

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£M ™M £M £M
3 4 - -
3 3 - -
2 3 - -
37 35 - -
45 45 - -
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£iM M £M £M
32 49 - -
38 38 - -
18 48 - -
250 238 - -
224 305 104 112
16 25 - -
270 269 - -
98 91 - -
- | - -
2 7 - -
968 1,071 104 112

Included within other debtors due within one year 1s an amount of £111 {2012 £ tmullion) relaung 1o margin calls on

open derivative positions
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Creditors:
Amounts falhing due within gne year

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£M £M £M &M
Secured bank loans {notel6) 54 118 - -
Other bank loans and overdrafts 3 4 - -
Net obligattons under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts 3 3 - -
Trade creditors 154 143 - 1
Amounts owed to related undertakings 394 470 2,524 2,449
Corporation tax 14 9 - -
Social secunity and other taxes 18 16 - -
Other creditors 146 122 - -
Accruals and deferred income 939 917 - -
1,725 1802 2,524 2,450

Included within other creditors due within one year 1s an amount of £12million (2012 £38mullion) relating to
margn calls on open derivative positions

Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

iM £M £EM £M
Secured bank loans 334 389 - -
Other bank loans and overdrafts 6 8 - -
Shareholder loans 4 4 - -

Net obligations under finance leases and

hire purchase contracts 8 11 - -
Amounts owed to related undertakings - 5 - -
Accruals and deferred income 40 21 - -
392 438 - -

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts, included above, are payable as follows

Group
2013 2012
£M £M
Between one and five years 8 ]

The Company has no commitments under finance leasc and hire purchase contracts (2012 £ml)

42



Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

16

Creditors.
Amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Financing

On 22 October 2012, Virgin Holdings Limited and Virgin Group Investments Limited a parent company, as
borrowers and guarantors, and certain other subsidiaries of Virgin Group Holdings Limited entered into a mulu-
currency revolving credit facthty of £430million with Lioyds TSB Bank plc ( the New "acility™) This facility
refinanced the £623milhon multi-currency revolving credit facility, which was entered into on 25 November 2008
(as amended and restated on 15 July 2010) (- the Old Facility™) As with the Old Faality, the New Facility has sub-
facihuies for drawings in AUD, EUR, GBP, USD and ZAR and both can be utilised for letters of credit and c¢ash
drawings

As at the balance sheet date, 31 March 2013, £342million was drawn down under the New Facility (2012
£430milhion under the Old Facility) The New Facility will reduce to £380mihon on 31 December 2013,
£340mullion on 31 December 2014 and £300mullion on 31 December 2015 The tinal matunity date 15 31 December
2016, although subject to mutual agreement between lender and borrowers, there 15 an option 1o extend this to 31
December 2017 The Old Facility was scheduled to reduce to £380million on 31 December 2012 and to
£300million on 31 December 2013 1n advance of the final maturity date of 31 December 2014

As with the Old Facility, the New Factlity 1s guaranteed by Virgin Haldings Limited and Virgin Group Investments
Limited and 15 secured by various of the Group’s investments Should the Group dispose of any of 1ts secured
nvestments, part of the proceeds may be required to be used in part prepayment of amounts outstanding under the
facihties, subject to the leve!l of utilisation of the New Facility at the time

Interest 1s payable on amounts drawn under the New Facility by reterence to the London Inter Bank Ottered Rate
(LIBOR} tor borrowings in Sterling or US Dollar, by reference to the Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate (BBSW) for
borrowings in Australian Dollar, by reference to the Johannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate (JIBAR) for borrowings
in South African Rand and by reference to the Euro Interbank Oftered Rate (EURIBOR) for borrowings in Euro in
each case plus a margin and mandatory costs The margin 1s linked to the amount outstanding under the tacility
(which ranged from 2 30% to 3 50% per annum under the Old Facility and as at 31 March 2012 was 2 75% per
annum) and which range from 3 (0% to 4 75% under the New Facility and as at 31 March 2013 was 3 75%

As with the Otd Facility, the New Facility contains a financial cavenant in respect of the ratto of the total value of
secured investments to total utilisation under the facility Comphiance with this covenant ts tested annually as of 31
December or on request by Lloyds TSB Bank plc As with the Old Facility, the New Facihty contains certain
affirmative covenants negative pledges and events of default, which are customary for faciliues of this nature The
event of default provisions include payment defaulits (subject to a three day grace period), breach of financial
covenant, breach of other obligations, misrepresentation, cross default, insolvency. repudiation, illegality, cessation
of business, appropnation of assets and material adverse change

On 24 December 2008, the Group entered mto a £14mullion amortising term loan facility with Lloyds TSB Bank
pic The amount cutstanding of £8million was refinanced on 20 December 2012 to bring the terms and conditions
in line with the New Facihity The loan 1s repayable by 24 December 2016 with principal repayment instalments of
£2milbion due annually on 24 December Under the terms of the loan agreement nterest 15 payable on amounts
drawn at LIBOR plus a margin of 2 00% per annum and mandatory costs
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Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Other secured loans

The Virgin Atlanuc Group has secured bank loans totalling £24mullion (2012: £40millicn) secured by mortgages
over certain awcraft £9million (2012 £10muilhion) of these loans fall due for repayment after five years The
interest rates charged for the year are in the range 0 625% to 2 75% above US$ LIBOR

Necker [sland (BVI) Limited has a secured bank loan to the value of £12millior (2012 £11mullion) ot which
£7milhon (2012 £9mithion) 15 due for repayment after five years The interest rate on this loan was 2 5% (2012
2 3%) above US$ LIBOR The loan 15 secured on the 1stand

Charter Air Lumited has a bank loan of £nd {2012 £11million) relating to a mortgage secured over an aircraft of
which none (2012 £rl) 1s due for repayment after five years The bank loan was fully repaid in July 2012

Virgin Hotels Group Limited has a secured bank loan of £1Imillion (2012 £9million) of which £10mullion (2012
£7mulion) 15 due for repayment after five years The interest rates 1n the year were fixed interest rates ranging from
1 35%to 1 86%

Financial instruments
Under the terms of the New Facility the Group s required to hedge the interest payable under the facility over the

life of the facihity On 23 December 2012 the Group terminated 1ts previous nterest rate hedges and entered into
three new interest rate hedges against 3 month LIBOR/BBSW as tollows

. US$66million interest rate swap at a fixed rate of 4 225%
. £87 5million interest rate swap at a fixed rate of 4 425%
. AUS$170million interest rate swap at a fixed rate of 7 07%

The matunty of the hedges are aligned with the matunity of the New Facility Parts of the facility nominated :n ZAR
and EUR are not hedged under the interest rate hedge agreements
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Deferred taxation

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Deferred tax liabilaty 2013 2012
£M ™M
At beginming of year 60 89
(Released)/charged during the year 25) 35
Adpustments 1n respect of prior year (1 5
Charge to statement of total recognised gains and losses - 1
Atend of year 34 50
The elements of deferred taxation are as follows
2013 2013 2012 2012
Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative
provided unprovided provided unprovided
M M ™M M
Accelerated caprtal allowances 72 (3) 91 (6)
Other tming differences (6) M ®) 2)
Tax losses (34) (126) (30) (157)
32 (130) 53 (165)
Deferred tax asset 2) (130) (7 (165)
Deferred tax hiabihity 34 - 60 -
32 (130) 53 (165}

£2mullion (2012 £7mullion) of the deferred tax asset cannot be otfset against the deferred tax hability and s,

therefore, included 1n debtors

A reduction 1n the UK Corporation Tax rate from 24% to 23% (effecuve from 1 April 2013) was substantively
enacted on 3 July 2012 A rate of 23% has been used within the deferred tax caleulations within these financial

statement

Further reductions to 21% (effective from | April 2014) and 20% (effective from | Apnl 2015) were substantively

enacted on 17 July 2013

The reduction to 20% will reduce the company’s future current tax charge accordingly and further reduce the
deferred tax hability at 31 March 2013 {which has been calculated based on the rate of 23% substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date) by £3m
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18 Provisions

Aarcraft Legal and Restructuring Total
mamtenance other costs and iM

iM £M onerous

leases

£M

. Group

At 1 April 2012 128 56 12 196
Additions 50 3 1 54
Amounts used (44) n 2) 47
Amounts released - 37 - an
Reclassifications - )] - N
Foreign exchange translation 6 - - 6
At 31 March 2013 140 i4 11 65

Aircraft mamntenance

Aarcraft maintenance provisions relate to overhauls on aircrafis and engines held under operating leases for which
there 15 a contractual obligation

Legal and other

£12million (2012 £54mullion) represents the estimated outstanding cost ansing from the settlement of civil actions
agamnst Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited  The information usually required by Financial Reporting Standard 12 for
these litigation provisions is not disclosed an the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice seriously the outcome
of the litigation

Reclassificanions relates to amounts transferred to creditors falling due within one year

Restructuring costs and onerous lease provisions

Leaschold dilapidations and onerous lease provisions are discounted with the unwinding of the discount being taken
to the profit and loss account

Restructuring costs and onerous leases provisions principally compnise of the following

Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited’s onerous lease provisions and potental dilapidatton costs of £4million (2012
£3million)

£lmillion (2012 £3milhon) of dilapidations costs relates to costs required to be incurred at properties leased by
Virgin Rail in accordance with lease obligations These costs are expected Lo be incurred by the end of the West
Coast franchise as extended by the Interim Franchise Agreement

£2million (2012 £2milhon) relates to Virgin Enterprises Limited's onerous lease provision

£3miihon (2012 £3mtlon) relates to Cnibyn Limited’s onerous lease provision

£1mithion (2012 £1mtllion) relates to Virgin Management Limited’s onerous lease provision
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20.

Share capital

2013
M

Allotted, called up and fully patd
421,023,992 (2012 - 421.023,986) ordinary shares of £1 each 421

31 March 2013

2012
iM

421

During the year, Bluebottle USA Mobile Inc subscribed for 6 ordinary £1 shares in the Company at a premium of

£ lmullion
Reserves
Share
premium Profit and loss
account account
Group M M
At 1 Apnl 2012 - (374)
Profit for the year - 106
Premium on shares 1ssued during the year 1 -
Currency translation differences on net foreign currency iavestments - 1
At 31 March 2013 ! (267)
Share
premium Profit and loss
account account
Company &M £M
At Apnl 2012 - (230)
Loss for the year - (83)
Premium on shares issued during the year 1 -
313)

At 31 March 2013 1
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21.

22,

Reconciliation of movement in shareholders' funds

2013 2012
Group £M iM
Opening shareholders' funds 47 6l \
Profit/(loss) for the year 106 (114)
Shares tssued during the year - 83
Share premtum on shares 1ssued (net of expenses) 1 - ‘
Actuarial loss on pension scheme - (0 |
Unrealised gain on sale of substdiaries and other shareholdings - 13 \
Currency translation differences on net foreign currency investrnents 1 2
Unrealised gain on sale of intangible assets net of tax - 3
Closing shareholders' tunds 155 47
2013 2012
Company £M M
Opening shareholders’ funds 191 83
(Loss)/profit for the year 83 25
Shares 1ssued duning the vear - 83
Share premium on shares 1ssued (net of expenses) 1 -
Closing shareholders' funds 109 191

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not
to present 1ts own profit and loss account

Minority interests

Equity £M }
At 1 Apnit 2012 (80) *
Minority interests share of loss after taxation for the year 9 |
Dividends paid to minonty interests 22

At31 March 2013 (49)
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24.

Contingent habilities

31 March 2013

In accordance with the Intenim Franchise Agreement for West Coast, Virgin Rail Group Limited has procured a
performance bond n favour of the DIT for West Coast The West Coast bond has been 1ssued by ACE European

Group Limuted for up to £21mullion (2012 £21mullion)

Virgin Voyager Limited and Voyager Group Limited guarantee the operating lease commitments in relation to
various properties leased by Virgin Active Group Limited, Virgin Clubs Limited and Virgin Management Limited

The total agregate hability 15 £90multion

Virgin Holdings Limited has given the following guarantees

Beneficiary Obhgation Aggregate
Liabihity
Standard Life Investment Funds ~ Various Virgin Actuve Holdings Limited property subleases £14million
Virgin Galactie customers Aggregate Virgin Galacuc customer deposits $82mullion
NHS Surrey Primary Care Trust  Provision of community health services £9mullion
New Devon CCG Provision ot community health services £5muthon
Nozee Limited Obligations and amounts payable in relation to the sale of £10mallion
Virgin Games' assets
Capital commitments
At 31 March 2013 the Group and Company had capital commitments as follows
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
iM ™M £M £M
Contracted for but not provided in these
financial statements 2,488 2753 - -
Capital commitments relating to atrcraft and engine purchases are stated at escalated list price less progress

payments made
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25.

Pension commitments

Defined contribution plans

Virgin Ailanuc Limited operates defined contisbution pension schemes The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group 1n independently administered funds The total expense relating to these plans
in the current year was £22milhon (2012 £21million) There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at year
end (2012 £ml)

Virgin Management Limited operates a defined contribution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those ot the Group 1n independently administered funds The total expense relating to the plan in
the current year was £1mulhion (2012 f£1million) There were no cutstanding or prepaid contributions at year end
(2012 £nil)

Virgtn Healthcare Holdings Limited operates a defined contiibution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds The total expense relating to the plan
in the current year was £8million (2012 £nil) There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at year end
(2012 £mil)

Defined benefir plans
Rail scheme

Virgin Rail Group Limited operates a defined benefit pension scheme The subsidiary participates 1n 1ts own
separate shared cost section of the Railway Pension Scheme ("RPS’) The RPS 15 a funded scheme and provides
benefits based on final penstonable pay The assets of the RPS are held separately from those of the subsidiary
The RPS 1s a shared cost scheme with costs being shared between the employer and the members on the basis of'a
60 40 sphit

The Group has no rights or obligations 1n respect of the RPS following expiry of the related franchuse Therefore,
the labihities recognised for the relevant section of the RPS only represent that part of the net deficit of the section
that the employer 15 obliged to fund over the life of the franchise to which the section relates The restriction on the
habiliues 1s presented as a “franchise adjustment * to the overall deficit

The latest actuanal valuation of the West Coast’s section of the RPS was undertaken at 31 December 2010 using
the projected unit method This valuation has been updated to 31 March 2013 by a qualified independent actuary,
using revised assumptions that are consistent with the requirements of FRS 17

Net pension hability 2013 2012
£M £M
Present value of defined benefit obligations (553) (478)
Fair value of section assets 383 347
Deficit in sectton (170) (131)
Members share of section 68 52
Franchise adjustment 101 78
Deficit recognised by the Group ) (1)
Related deterred tax asset - -
Net penston labihity mn (0
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Penstonr commitments (continued)

Movements 1n present value of defined benefit obligation

At beginning of year

Employer share of current service cost
Member share of current service cost
Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuanal losses

At end of year

Movements in fair value of section assets

At beginning of year

Expected return on section assets
Contributions by employer
Contributions by members
Benefits paid

Actuanal gains/(losses)

At end of year

Expense recognised in the profit and loss account

Cutrent service cost

Expected return on sectron assets
Interest on section liabilities

Interest credit on franchise adjustment

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Durectors' report and financial statements

2013
™M

478
15

23

(13)
41

553

2013
£™M

347
25
1]

a3

383

2013
M

15
(15)
14

)

10

31 March 2013

2012
£™M

385
12

24

(1)
60

478

2012
£™M

327
28
11

(1)
(15)

347

2012
£M

12
(16}

()
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Pension commitments (continued)

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements

The expense 18 recognised in the following lines of the profit and loss account

Admimistrative expenses - staff costs
Other finance income

2013
£iM

15
3

10

Amounts recogmised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

31 March 2013

2012
£M

12
Q)]

The total amount recogmsed in the consohdated statement of total recognised gains and losses in respect ot actuarial

gains and losses 1s £m1l (2012 £imillion loss)

Cumulative actuartal gams/losses reported 1n the consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses since 1

March 2004 are £2million gain (2012 £2milhion gamn)

Movement in deficit recogmised by Group

At beginming of year

Current service cost

Contnibutions

Other finance income

Actuanial loss

Deficit at start of Interim Franchise Agreement

Fair value of section assets

Equities
Bonds
Property
Other

Actual return on section assets

Future contributions

The Group currently expects to pay contributions of £1tmillion over the period of the 2013/2014 financial

statements

2013
£™M

R)]

(15)
1

n

)

2013

162
62
36

123

383
31

2012
£™M

180
35
42
70

347
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Pension commitments (continued)

Actuanal assumptions

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary compames
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

Principal actuanal assumptions at the balance sheet date were as follows

Rate of increasc of salanes
Rate ot increase n pensions 1n payment and deferred pensions
Discount rate
Inflation assumption
CPI inflation assumption
Long term rate of return expected on
- Equities
- Bonds
- Property
- Other
- Overall

2013 2012
%o Y
43 43
23 23
46 485
33 33
23 23
80 775
39 47
75 75
70 725
70 71

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension habihuies at the balance sheet date are based on
standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements (n longevity The assumptiens

are as follows

Member aged 60 (current life expectancy) 26 years {male), 28%: years (female)
Member aged 40 (life expectancy from age 60) 28'% years (male), 31 vears (female)

I'he inflation assumptions for certain benefits are now based on the consumer Price Index ("CP!") rather than the
Retail Price Tndex ("RPI") tollowing the change announced by the UK Government in 2010

History of sections

The history of the sections for the current and prior years 1s as follows

Balance sheet 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£M £M £M M £™M
Present value of section llabilities (553) (478) (385) (387 (298)
Fair value of section assets 383 347 327 294 21
Deficit in section (170) (131 (58) {93) 87)
Members share of section 68 52 23 37 35
Franchise adjustment 101 78 32 53 47
Deficit recogmsed by Group (1) (1) 3) 3) ()
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25. Pension commitments (continued)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Experience adjustments
Experience adjustments on section assets

arnount (£m) 4 8) 3 36 (67)

percentage of section assets 1% 3% 1% [2% (32%)
Expenence adjustments on section liabilities

amount (£m) 3) (6) 1 2) (1)

percentage of present vatue of section liabilities (1%) (1%) - (1%) (1%)

26. Operating lease commitments

AL 31 March 2013 the Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows

Land and buildings Awrcraft and other

2013 2012 2013 2012

Group £M £M £iM ™
Expiry date:

Within 1 year 6 14 9 109

Between 2 and 5 years 26 15 192 88

Afler more than 5 years 12 15 145 128

Total 44 44 346 325

Virgin Rail Group Holdings Limited has 1n the normal course of business entered into a number of long term
supply contracts The most significant of these refate to track access facilities, train maintenance arrangements and
IT outsourcing

Under the Interim Franchise Agreement for West Coast, there 1s a requirement for Virgin Rail Group Limited and
West Coast 1o comply with certain performance and other obligations

Other commitments

The substantial proporuion of capital expenditure, leasing commitments, fuel and other operating costs of Virgin
Atlantic Limited are deneminated in US dollars A number of derivative financial tnstruments have been taken out
to cover part of the exposure risk The timing difference between derivative matunty date and current mark-to-
market value can give nse to cash maigin exposure This risk 1s managed through a choice of mstruments,
appropniate counterparty agreemnents and, where required, cash deposits with counterparties
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Share based payments

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companies

Directors’ report and financial statements

31 March 2013

In the prior year the Group entered into a Long Term Incentive Plan arrangement with certain staff to reward them
with a cash bonus based on the growth 1n value of a portfolio of group companies relevant to their line of work
The LTIP scheme vested at 31 October 2011 at which time the final valuation of group companies and bonus

hiability were determined  Final payments under the scheme were made during the year

amount of liabilities 1n respect of vested benefits 1s £ml (2012 £5muilhon)

The movement 1n the liability s as tollows

Liability at beginning of period
Income statement (credrt) / charge
Cash payments

Liability at end of period

Reconcihation of operating profit/(loss) to operating cash flows

Operating profit/(loss)

Share based payments

Depreciation, amortisatton and impatrment charges

Increase in stocks

Decrease 1in debtors

Decrease in creditors

(Decrease)increase 1n provisions

Difference between employer pension contributions and amounts
recognised in the profit and loss account

Net cash mflow trom operating activities

Analysis of net debt

2013
£iM

(5)

31 March
2013
£™M

98

89

101
(67)
(30$)

195

The intrinsic carrying

2012
M

14

(11

2012
£M

(229)

263
&)
93

(13)
14

122

At 31 March Cash flow Exchange Other non cash At 31 March |
2012 movements changes 2013 :
£M £M M M &M
Cash n hand, at bank 643 5 7 - 655
Overdrafis 2) 1 - - 1)
641 6 7 - 654
Debt due with one year (120) 76 (n (1) (56)
Debt due after one year 401) 49 3) It (344)
Finance leases 14) 3 - - (11)
Group funding (392) (101) {4) 120 377
Total (286) 33 (n 120 (134) |
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Analysis of cash flows

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends paid to minonities

Interest element of finance lease rentals

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of

finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of intangible fixed assets

Sale of tangible fixed assets

Sale of intangible fixed assets
Repayments from joint ventures

Funding provided to related undertakings
Repayments from related undertakings

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure

Acquisitions and disposals

Purchase of subsidiary undertakings

Net cash balances acquired with subsidiary
Sale of business

Net cash balance disposed with subsidiary
Sale of other investments

Net cash inflow from acquisitions and disposals

Vurgim Wings Limited and subsidiary companies

Directors' report and financial statements

2013
£M

5
{48)
22)

63)

2013

31 March 2013

2012
£M

18
(47
a7

(B

47)

2012
™M

92)
{23)

10
51
21

(125}

2012
£M

24
2)
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Analysis of cash flows {(continued)

Financmg

Issue of shares
Repurchase of shares
Funding from related undertakings
Repayments to related undertakings
Debt due within one year
Net repayments on bank loans
Other loan repayments
Debt due after more than one year
Net repayments on bank loans
Settlement of share options
Capital elements of finance lease rental payments

Net cash outflow from financing

Post balance sheet events

Virgin Wings Limited and subsidiary companties
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

2013 2012
£M ™M
- 83
- 24
105 9
“@ (20)
(76) (7
- (1
(49) (102)
) (12)
&) 3

32) (87)

On 30 April 2013, Virgin Money {(Australia) Pty Limited was sold to Bank of Queensland Limited for a
consideration of £20million (AUDS$30mullion), settled through the 1ssue of ordinary shares in Bank of Queensland

Limited

.

On 24 June 2013, Singapore Airlines Limted transferred i1ts entire shareholding m Virgin Atlantic Limited, being

49% of the 1ssued capital, to Delta Air Lines Inc
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33.

Related party transactions

Virgm Wings Limited and subsidiary companies
Directors' report and financial statements
31 March 2013

As at 31 March 2013, the Company’s ultimate parent company was Virgim Group Holdings Limited, whose
principal sharcholders are Sir Richard Branson and certamn trusts none of which individually has a centrolling
interest in Virgin Group Holdings Limuted The principal beneficianes of those trusts are Sir Richard Branson
and/or members of his immediate farmly  Virgin Group Holdings Limited 13 incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands The sharcholders of Virgin Group Holdings Limited have interests directly or indirectly 1n certain other
companies which are considered to give rise to related party disclosures under Financial Reporting Standard 8

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption within Financial Reporting Standard 8 which allows transactions
cntered into by wholly owned Group subsidiaries to be excluded from disclosure The following 1s a summary of
material transactions and balances by the Group with related entites, which are required to be disclosed by

Financial Reporting Standard 8

Companies related by wvirtue of common
control or ownership

Virgin America Tnc

Activetopco Ltd

Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Ltd

Virgin Australia Holdings Ltd

Virgin Media Ltd

Compames related by virtue of being joint
ventures or associates of the Group
Omer Telecom Ltd

Compamies related by wirtue of bemng
mvestors in the Group

Singapore Awrlines Ltd

Stagecoach Group Ltd

Assura Group Lid

Controlling party

iM

13
19
12
10

Turnover Purchases Interest Debtors Creditors Dividends

receivable recerved
£M £M £M £M £M
- 8 52 - -

- - 6 - -

- - 4 - -
(17 - 2 - -
- - 3 - -

- 1 20 - -

- - - - 1
(2) - - - 20
- - - 4 -

At 31 March 2013, the ultimate parent undertaking was Virgin Group Holdings Limited, a company registered in

the British Virgin I[slands
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